

# Beau Blaser Software Blaser Emergency Alert Messaging System [B.E.A.M.S.]

Version 2.8.5

## Introduction

Originally Published (Version 1.0): September 15, 2001

(Version 2.0): May 2, 2007 (Version 2.4) August 6, 2007 (Version 2.6) July 5, 2008 (Version 2.8) June 2, 2009 (Version 2.8) June 2, 2009

For the latest information, please see http://www.blaser.us/software/beams/

#### Abstract

This introduction to the Beau Blaser Software Blaser Emergency Alert Messaging System provides a basic understanding of the system, its intent and purpose and the value that can be derived by using the program. In addition, this introduction is designed to provide its audience with the ability to explore the full documentation set in a meaningful context in order to realize maximum benefit when implementing the software.

Information in this document, including URL and other Internet Web site references, is subject to change without notice. The entire risk of the use or the results of the use of this document and software remains with the user.

© 2001-2012 Blaser Software. All rights reserved.

The names of actual companies and products mentioned herein may be the trademarks of their respective owners.

Blaser Software • PO Box 4159 • Pittsburgh, PA 15202 • USA

### Table of Contents

END-USER LICENSE AGREEMENT	1
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY	2
INTRODUCTION	3
WHO SHOULD READ THIS DOCUMENT	3
BENEFITS	4
End-User Value	4
INSTALLATION	5
USING THE BEAMS MANAGER	22
SILENT TESTING	27
ALERT ZONES	29
SUBNET ZONES	32
SENDING ALERTS	
SUMMARY	34
REFERENCES	34
A FEW WORDS FROM BEAU	34

### END-USER LICENSE AGREEMENT

**IMPORTANT - READ CAREFULLY**: This End-User License Agreement ("EULA") is a legal agreement between you (either an individual or a single entity) and Beau Blaser Software for the technology identified above, which may include computer software (in object code form), schemas, templates, transaction sets, associated media, printed materials, and "online" or electronic documentation ("Technology"). BY DOWNLOADING, INSTALLING, COPYING, OR OTHERWISE USING THE TECHNOLOGY, YOU AGREE TO BE BOUND BY THE TERMS OF THIS EULA. IF YOU DO NOT AGREE TO THE TERMS OF THIS EULA, DO NOT INSTALL OR USE THE TECHNOLOGY.

#### LICENSE AGREEMENT

The Blaser Emergency Alert Messaging System package contains computer software belonging to Blaser Software. The following terms and conditions shall apply to the use of the software.

**1. GRANT OF LICENSE.** Blaser Software grants to you, the original purchaser only, the right to use one copy of the enclosed **Blaser Emergency Alert Messaging System** (BEAMS; the software) on a single computer (i.e., with a single CPU.) You may not use this software on more than one computer or computer terminal. You may only make the demo version of the software publicly available by placing a copy on a network or by placing a copy on a system accessed via electronic communication (e.g., a BBS or modem.) You may not assign or transfer the software or this license without the express written consent of Blaser Software. Any attempt to sub-license, assign, or transfer any of the rights, duties, or obligations hereunder is void.

**2. COPYRIGHT.** The software is owned by Blaser Software and is protected under United States copyright laws and international treaty provisions. Therefore, you must treat the software like any other copyrighted material (e.g., a book or musical recording) except that you may make one copy of the software solely for backup or archival purposes. You may not copy the written materials accompanying the software.

**3. OTHER RESTRICTIONS.** This Blaser Software license agreement is your proof of license to exercise the rights granted herein and must be retained by you.

You may not rent or lease the software. You may not reverse engineer, decompile or disassemble the software.

**4. NO WARRANTY**. Any use by you of the software is at your own risk. The software is provided for use as is with out warranty of any kind. Blaser software and its suppliers disclaim all warranties of any kind, either express or implied, including, without limitation, implied warranties of merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose.

**5. NO LIABILITY FOR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES.** In no event shall Blaser Software or its agents, officers, employees, or suppliers be liable for any damages whatsoever (including, without limitation, damages for loss of business profits, business interruption, loss of business information, or other pecuniary loss) arising out of the use or inability to use this product, even if Blaser Software or it's agents have been advised of the possibility of such damages. Because some jurisdictions do not allow the exclusion or limitation of liability for consequential or incidental damages, the above limitation may not apply to you.

## THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF PENNSYLVANIA, U.S.A.

### FOR INFORMATION REGARDING CORPORATE SITE LICENSES OR SERVICE INDUSTRY LICENSES, PLEASE CONTACT BLASER SOFTWARE SALES DEPARTMENT: SALES@BLASER.US

HTTP://WWW.BLASER.US/

## **Executive Summary**

The **Blaser Emergency Alert Messaging System** is the premiere emergency messaging system for Windows computers and networks. This advanced system allows organizations to immediately display an alert message on every powered-on computer with network connectivity. Many seemingly similar systems require that a user be logged-on to the workstation. However, the **Blaser Emergency Alert Messaging System**'s unique advantage is that it is the only system which runs as a Windows service and has the ability to display alerts on all computers regardless of their logon status.

For more information and to download a fully-functioning demo, please visit the **Blaser Emergency Alert Messaging System** website at http://www.blaser.us/software/beams/

# Introduction

This document provides the information needed to install and use Beau Blaser Software's **Blaser Emergency Alert Messaging System**.

## Who Should Read This Document

This introduction is intended for audiences who are installing the **Blaser Emergency Alert Messaging System** or make decisions in the planning, development, deployment, or operational aspects of the application in their IT infrastructure. The document aims to educate the audience sufficiently to help determine what value can be derived from the **Blaser Emergency Alert Messaging System** in their environment.

## **Approach & Design Goals**

**Blaser Emergency Alert Messaging System** was designed from the start to be the premiere messaging system for the Windows operating system. **Blaser Emergency Alert Messaging** System is a client/server system that delivers emergency alert messages via computer in an instant. There are three (3) components: the server, the client, and the manager.

The **Blaser Emergency Alert Messaging System** server runs on a single computer that accepts connections from the clients and managers; the **BEAMS** server is the engine that delivers alert messages to all connected clients. The **BEAMS** server runs as a system service so it starts with the operating system. Once the **BEAMS** server is installed and configured, there is not much more you need to do.

The **Blaser Emergency Alert Messaging System** client is installed on all computers in your organization that you wish to receive the emergency alert messages. The client also runs as a system service, which means that once installed and configured, it will connect to the **BEAMS** server at boot-up (provided there is network connectivity) and wait for an alert message to be sent. Upon reception of an alert message from the server, the **BEAMS** client will immediately display the alert message on the primary display of the computer. The unique feature of the **Blaser Emergency Alert Messaging System** is its ability to display alert messages in all of the following cases:

- No one is logged on to the computer (the Ctrl-Alt-Del message is on-screen)
- The workstation is "locked" or otherwise in use
- The screen-saver is running
- A user is logged on and interacting with the computer

The alert will appear in all these cases thereby making it easy for those in-charge to get key information to all individuals near a computer instantly; no waiting, no relying on e-mail.

# **Benefits**

The **Blaser Emergency Alert Messaging System** is the only alert system available that offers the rich feature-set of alerts for Windows computers and networks. At many places of business, schools, hospitals, etc., people arrive and may not necessarily sit down and logon to their computer immediately. Perhaps they go for a cup of coffee, or head over to the water cooler, or walk over to chat with a friend. If an emergency strikes, how will you alert these people? An e-mail would only reach those in front of their computer that happen to be checking their e-mail. What if there was a way to broadcast your emergency alert message to **all the computers** at the same time; you would get your message out to everyone, even if they were not logged-in! The **Blaser Emergency Alert Messaging System**'s vivid alert message and attention-getting alert sound will make people aware of a situation as it is unfolding; before it is too late.

### **End-User Value**

End-Users, who have the BEAMS Client installed on their computer, can rest assured that when key information needs to be conveyed, they will get the message no matter what they are doing.

- Install it, configure it, and let it run! The BEAMS Manager has a testing function that you can run to ensure your clients are receiving messages from the server.
- Licensing available in any quantity: as little as one or as many as a site license. Volume licensing pricing can be negotiated via <u>sales@blaser.us</u>

	Emergency Alert Message	
	LOCK-DOWN IS IN EFFECT	
	Please close and lock your office and make your way to the nearest holding area until help arrives.	
ALERT		ALERT
	Dismiss	
	AutoDismiss in 101 seconds.	

# Installation

The steps below will outline the installation and configuration of the Blaser Emergency Alert Messaging System.

1. Download and execute the Blaser Emergency Alert Messaging System (BEAMS) installer.



2. Select the components that you wish to install.

BLASER EMERGENCY CI ALERT MESSAGING SYSTEM	hoose Components Choose which features of Blaser Er System [BEAMS] 2.0 you want to in	nergency Alert Messaging nstall.
Check the components you wa install. Click Next to continue.	int to install and uncheck the comp	onents you don't want to
Select components to install:	BEAMS Server     BEAMS Server Configurat     BEAMS Manager     BEAMS Client	Description Position your mouse over a component to see its description.
Space required: 0.0KB	4	
lsoft Install System v2.18		

When you install the BEAMS Server, you must also install the BEAMS Server Configuator. This companion application establishes the basic settings of the BEAMS Server.

Blaser Emergency Alert Me	essaging System [BEAMS] 2.0 Se	etup
BLASER BEAMS EMERGENCY ALERT MESSAGING SYSTEM	Choose Components Choose which features of Blaser E System [BEAMS] 2.0 you want to i	mergency Alert Messaging nstall.
Check the components you w install. Click Next to continue	vant to install and uncheck the comp	ponents you don't want to
Select components to install:	BEAMS Server     BEAMS Server Configurat     BEAMS Manager     BEAMS Client	Description Position your mouse over a component to see its description.
Space required: 736.0KB	< +	<u></u>
Nullsoft Install System v2.18 —	< <u>B</u> ack	Next > Cancel

When you install the BEAMS Client or BEAMS Manager, you will be prompted for the BEAMS Server address and port.

🛐 Blaser Emergency Alert Messaging System [BEAMS] 2.0 Setup	🙀 Blaser Emergency Alert Messaging System (BEAMS) 2.0 Setup
BLASER BEAMS ALERT MESSAGING SYSTEM BEAMS] 2.0 you want to install.	BEANS BEANS ALERT MESSAGING SYSTEM Choose Components Choose Which features of Blaser Emergency Alert Messaging System (BEAMS) 2.0 you want to install.
Check the components you want to install and uncheck the components you don't want to install. Click Next to continue.	Check the components you want to install and uncheck the components you don't want to install. Click Next to continue.
Select components to install: BEAMS Server Configurat BEAMS Server Configurat BEAMS Client Description. Position your mouse over a component to see its description.	Select components to install: BEAMS Server BEAMS Server Configurat BEAMS Manager Computers. This component displays the alert messages.
Space required: 712.0KB	Space required: 720.0KB
Nullsoft Install System v2.18	Nullsoft Install System v2.18

Blaser Emergency Alert Messaging System [BEAMS] 2.0 Set	up 🗖 🗖 🔀
BLASER BEAMS ALERT ALERT MESSAGING SYSTEM	
Enter your BEAMS server information below. These values are required in order for the client or manager to co BEAMS Server Address [beams.domain.tld]	nnect to the BEAMS server.
BEAMS.server.addr	
BEAMS Server Port [50911]	
50911	
Nullsoft Install System v2.18	
< <u>B</u> ack	Install

3. Select the path for your installation.

AMS EMERGENCY ALERT MESSAGING SYSTEM	Choose Install Location Choose the folder in which to install Blaser Emergency Alert Messaging System [BEAMS] 2.0.
Setup will install Blaser Eme folder. To install in a differe	rgency Alert Messaging System [BEAMS] 2.0 in the following ent folder, click Browse and select another folder. Click Next to
onunue.	
Destination Folder	
Destination Folder	r Software\BEAMS Browse
Destination Folder C:\Program Files\Blase Space required: 736.0KB	r Software\BEAMS Browse
Destination Folder <b>C:\Program Files\Plase</b> Space required: 736.0KB Space available: 57.2GB	r Software\BEAMS Browse
Destination Folder	r Software BEAMS Browse

4. When you reach the License Information screen, please enter your license information. If you wish to evaluate the software, you may leave this information blank and the Blaser Emergency Alert Messaging System will run in trial mode.

In trial mode, the BEAMS Server is able to accept and communicate with fifty (50) simultaneous clients. This number includes the BEAMS Manager, which for the purposes of client/server connections, also consumes a connection.

EAMS BLASER EMERGENCY text ALERT MESSAGING SYSTEM	text
Enter your license information be Licensee Name	elow or leave blank to run in trial mode.
Authorized User	
Licensee Company	
Authorized Company	
License Key	
Julisoft Install System v2,18	

5. The installer will now copy the files necessary based on the options you selected.

BLASER EMERGENCY ALERT MESSAGING SYSTEM	istalling Please wait while Blaser Emergency Alert Messaging System (BEAMS) 2.0 is being installed.
Create shortcut: C:\Users\adr	ninjbb\AppData\Roaming\Microsoft\Windows\Start Menu\Prog
Output folder: Ci\Program E	ilas/Placar Software/PEAMS
Extract: BEAMSserver.exe	. 100%
Create folder: C:\Users\	\AppData\Roaming\Microsoft\Windows\Start Menu\
Create shortcut: C:\Users\	\AppData\Roaming\Microsoft\Windows\Start Men
and Teached Crashene w2 10	
ISULT IIISTAII SYSTEIN V2,10 —	

6. After installation has completed, you will need to run the Blaser Emergency Alert Messaging System Configuator to configure your options.



# Configuration

After installation, begin by configuring your BEAMS server. To do this, start the BEAMS Server Configuator via the Start Menu:

Start,

All Programs, BEAMS, BEAMS Server Configuator



### Credentials

This tab allows you to provide a Manager username and password. Only the BEAMS Manager has the ability to send messages using the BEAMS system. The manager's identity is verified with the credentials provided here.

#### **Manager Credentials**

#### User Name

Enter the user name you wish to use establish for the BEAMS Manager.

#### Password

Enter the corresponding password you wish to establish for the BEAMS manager.

#### Network Credentials (Optional)

Optionally, to use Network Authentication with a Windows Domain, perform the following steps.

1. In *Active Directory Users and Computers,* create a **Global Security Group** that will contain your BEAMS Managers.



2. Open the new **Global Security Group**, and on the **Members** tab, click the **Add** button to add Active Directory users that will function in the role of a BEAMS Manager.

B Danu Planar	Active Directory Folder	
🛂 Beau Blaser	Users	

#### Enable Network Authentication

This checkbox enables authentication with a Windows Domain.

#### Domain Name

Enter the Windows Domain that you want to authenticate against.

#### Group

Enter the name of the Global Security Group that you created that BEAMS Managers will possess membership.

### Network

#### TCP Port

Numeric values only.

Provide the TCP port that the BEAMS server will bind to and listen for incoming connections from the BEAMS clients. You can use any value here that is appropriate for your network environment.



### License

On the **License** tab, you can provide your license information. The information provided on this tab determines the capabilities of your BEAMS server, including the number of simultaneous connections you are licensed for.

Credentials   Netwo	wrk License SMTP Database About	
License Information	1	
Provide your provided det BEAMS syste	BEAMS system license information. The license information emines how many connections and the capabilities of your em.	
Nam	ne Authorized User	
Compa	any Authorized Company	
<u> </u>		
2 C		

#### Name

The name of the licensee.

#### Company

The name of the company.

#### License Key

Enter your license key in the boxes provided. BEAMS uses a 25 character alpha-numeric license key.

To purchase a license key, visit <u>http://www.blaser.us/software/beams/</u>

### SMTP

The SMTP and database features are optional components not required for the basic workstation alert functionality of BEAMS. The information provided regarding the SMTP e-mail server and database server are necessary as these two subsystems work together to send out e-mail and SMS text message alerts via the BEAMS system. Correct configuration information for your SMTP server and database server is required for this feature to work.

Due to the potential volume of messages that could possibly be sent via BEAMS through your SMTP, it is recommended that you test your configurations thoroughly. In order to balance the need to transmit urgent messages quickly while also being mindful of e-mail server configuration best-practices, you may need to adjust the rules in your SMTP server.

For example, if your SMTP server employs some kind of "rate control" based on sender address, sender IP, etc., or "spam filtering" you will need to make certain that your rules are set such that messages can flow through the SMTP server without delay or being unintentionally flagged as spam.

On the **SMTP** tab, you can supply information about your e-mail server.

edentials   Network	License SMTP Database About		
SMTP Server Address:	10.1.0.2	_	
From Address:	BEAMS@domain.tld		
Subject Line:	BEAMS ALERT!!		
Maximum recipients pe	r message: 1		
Maximum sendi	ng theads: 1		
	Test		
			p

*SMTP Server Address:* The address of your SMTP Server

#### From Address:

The e-mail address you want to appear on the alert e-mail message being sent.

*Subject Line:* The subject of the alert e-mail message.

Maximum Recipients Per Message: (Currently Disabled –Feature not yet active) Maximum Sending Threads (Currently Disabled –Feature not yet active)

### **SMTP** Testing

After you have supplied the information on the **SMTP** tab, you can send a test message from BEAMS through your e-mail server to ensure the information provided is correct and working. To do his, click the **Test** button.

In the **SMTP Test Message** dialog, type in a valid e-mail address and click the **Send** button.

AIVIS - SIVITP TES	r message	
	inter e-mail address for the test message recipient.	
contact@blas	er.us	
contact@blas	er.us	

16

If there is an error with your connection settings, you will see the following message:



If your supplied settings are correct, you will see the following message:



Now, check your e-mail to make sure you received the test message.

### Database

The database and SMTP features are optional components not required for the basic workstation alert functionality of BEAMS. The information provided regarding the database server and SMTP e-mail server and is necessary as these two subsystems work together to send out e-mail and SMS text message alerts via the BEAMS system. Correct configuration information for your database server and SMTP server is required for this feature to work.

#### Contained in the BEAMS Post-Install Pack (available at

http://www.blaser.us/software/beams/) are sample databases in Microsoft Access format and SQL format that you can use to establish the database structure necessary for SMTP e-mail and SMS text alerts. The database consists of a single table that is used to store the e-mail and SMS addresses. When a BEAMS alert message is broadcast with the **Send e-mail and SMS** checkbox selected, the BEAMS server will connect to the database specified to pull the list of addresses and will subsequently connect to the SMTP server specified to send alerts via this medium as well.

On the **Database** tab, you can provide information about your database server. The database you specify is the persistent storage for e-mail addresses and SMS text recipients. Currently, the BEAMS system only supports ODBC connectivity to databases. This enables you to decide what is best for your organization.

Database Information		
Database information		
Database Server Type:	ODBC -	
DSN (Data Source Name):	beams	
Credentials		
Database Usemame:	beams	
Database Password:	beams	
Database Table Name:	beams	-
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
	Test	

#### Database Server Type:

The type of database you are using. Currently ODBC is the only available option.

DSN:

The DSN (Data Source Name) established in the ODBC Control Panel.

#### Database Username:

If required, the username to access the database.

#### Database Password:

If required, the password to access the database.

#### Database Table Name:

The table name within the database that houses your data.

After you supply the information on this tab, click the **Apply** button to save these settings. You can now click the **Test** button to ensure communication exists between BEAMS and your database.

If you see the following error message, verify that your ODBC information is correct.



If you see the following error message, your database credentials are correct, but the table name is incorrect.



Upon successful connection to the database, you will see a message similar to the following:



### About



The "About" screen displays some basic information about Blaser Emergency Alert Messaging System. In addition, there is a "Check for Updates" button. When clicked, a dialog will ask if it is permissible for BEAMS Configuator to contact the Blaser Software Homepage to see if there are updates available.

This process simply asks the Blaser Software servers for the CurrentVersion available of BEAMS. No information about your system is transmitted to the Blaser Software servers. Your privacy is our chief concern.



If you are running the most current version of **Blaser Emergency Alert Messaging System** the following dialog will appear.



When you have finished establishing your settings, click the **OK** button and you will see the following dialog:



The BEAMS Server loads it settings from the registry at startup. For any new changes to take effect, the BEAMS Server service must be restarted.

To do this, go to: Control Panel, Administrative Tools, Services

Find and *Restart* (or *Start* if it not running) the service named **BEAMS Server** 



# **Using the BEAMS Manager**

The BEAMS Manager is the only means of sending an alert message. The BEAMS Manager can be installed on as many computers as you like, however they will consume one (1) licensed connection on the server.

To start the BEAMS Manger via the Start Menu, click:

Start, All Programs, BEAMS, BEAMS Manager



Upon startup, the BEAM Manager will connect to the BEAMS server provided during install and you will be presented with the logon dialog. Provide the user name and password specified in the BEAMS Server Configuator and click *OK*.

Log On to BEAMS	
BEAMS	BLASER EMERGENCY ALERT MESSAGING SYSTEM
User name:    Password:	
	OK Cancel

If the BEAMS Server is unreachable the following error will be displayed:



If a connection to the server was established and if the user name and/or password are invalid, the following error will be displayed:



Otherwise, once your credentials are validated by the BEAMS server, you are presented with the main interface of the BEAMS Manager.

## **Broadcast Message**

Blaser Emergency Alert Messaging System Broadcast Message   Balloon Message   Silent Testing   Alert Zones   Subnet Zones	s   Canned Messag	ges   Client Management   About	-?- <mark>-</mark> ×
Emergency Alert Message			
	Alert Level	Red 💌	1
	Alert Sound	Red Alert Sound	]   Recet
		AutoDismiss Time         AutoDismiss Time:         Image: Transmiss Time:         Image: Transmission Tra	
		Send	Clear Alerts

The **Broadcast Message** tab allows you to send a broadcast alert to all connected clients. A **Broadcast Message** is intended to alert people via the computer no matter what they are doing or the logon state of the computer. Users need not to be logged-on to the computer; the Ctrl + Alt + Del message can be present and the alert message will still display.

The BEAMS Broadcast Alert Message will appear in front of **all** applications and play a corresponding alert sound that will call the attention to the screen.

In the textbox, type in the alert message that you want sent to all connected clients.

#### Alert Level

Choose an appropriate alert level to accompany the message.

#### AutoDismiss Time

In seconds. Default AutoDismiss Time is 120 seconds (2 minutes).

The time specified here is the amount of time you want the alert displayed on the client computers. The client will be permitted to dismiss the alert message as well.

#### Alert Zones

Select the zones you want to send you message to.

Selecting the **Broadcast Message** checkbox, the message will be sent to every connected client.

Selecting the **Send e-mail and SMS** checkbox will use the database and SMTP settings to send alerts via this mechanism as well.

You can select multiple alert zones by holding the **Ctrl** key while clicking selections.



20NE1	
🔲 Broadcast Message	
Send e-mail and SMS	
]	

# **Balloon Message**

Balloon Messages are for non-urgent notifications. These alerts will only reach users that are logged-on to their computers and are working on the desktop. A balloon popup notification will display in the system tray.

#### **Tray Balloon Title**

The title of your balloon message.

#### Alert Message

The message you wish to be displayed in the balloon.

i.e. "Toilets are clogged on the second floor. Please use facilities on ground floor only this afternoon."

oadcast Message Balloon Message	Silent Testing   Alert Zones   Subnet Zones   Canned Messages   Client Management   About
	AutoDismiss Time
Canned Message	Reset AutoDismiss Time: 120 seconds.
Tray Balloon Tr Alert Messac	e Use client's default AutoDismiss Time.
	Alert Zones
	Type     Friendly Name       Zone     Computer Lab       Zone     East Wing       Zone     West Wing       Subnet     Floor 1       Subnet     Floor 2
	₩ Broadcast Message
	Send

# **Silent Testing**

The Silent Testing option should be used often. This tab permits the BEAMS Manager to send a simulated message to all clients; essentially it is a "load test" of the system.

The test message is passed to the server which, in turn, broadcasts the message to all clients. The clients respond to notify the server that they have received the test message and the final count of responded clients is returned by the BEAMS Server to the BEAMS Manager that launched the test.

adcast Message	Balloon Message	Silent Testing	Alert Zones	Subnet Zones	Canned Messages	Client Management	About	
Silent Test	No visib The test that the	le alert will be di alert ensures th server is able to	splayed on cli nat you are ab contact each	ent machines. le to contact the n and every client	server and machine.			
	Alert Zone	s			1			
	Туре	Friendly Na	me					
	Zone Zone Subnet Subnet	Computer L East Wing West Wing Floor 1 Floor 2	ab					
	1	<b>I</b> ■ Broadcas	Message					
			Send					

Note the status bar at the bottom: After a message is sent, you can double-click the status bar at the bottom of the manager window to get a status report from the BEAMS Server. The status report will show which computers received the alert and reported back to the BEAMS Server.

The report is saved to the temporary files folder defined by the system variable **%TEMP%** and contains Tab Separated Values. This type of file displays nicely with Microsoft Excel.

If you do not have Microsoft Excel on your computer, you can navigate to the **%TEMP%** folder and open the status report with a regular text editor. The file name for the reports follows the following format:

#### YYYYMMDDHHMMSS-XXXX

**YYYY** is the 4-digit year, **MM** is the 2-digit month, **DD** is the 2-digit day, **HH** is the 2-digit hour, **MM** is the 2-digit minute, **SS** is the 2-digit second in GMT. The final four values **XXXX** is the number of alert messages sent since the last system reboot.

1	Aicrosoft Excel -	20080718124602-0006.xls			
:1	<u>File Edit View</u>	Insert Format Tools Data FlashPa	per <u>W</u> indow	<u>H</u> elp	_ 8 ×
1	💕 🔒 🔒 🖂	💁 💞 🎇   🐰 🖻 🛍 - 🟈   🤊 -	(* -   😣	$\Sigma \rightarrow \stackrel{A}{Z} \downarrow \stackrel{Z}{A} \downarrow   \stackrel{III}{\blacksquare} \stackrel{A}{\Rightarrow}$	😼 100% 💌 🕜 💂
Ari	al	• 10 • B <i>I</i> <u>U</u> = = = =	\$ %,	◆.0 .00   <b>●</b>	🗉 • 🔗 • <u>A</u> • 💂
	A10 👻	f*			
	А	В	С	D	E 🗖
1	Computer Name	GUID	UserName	OS Version	BEAMS Version
2	BLASER	3313165d215f47f195b2a91330ba9fd3	test	5,1,Service Pack 2	2.6
3	WW001	1bd6rlrdkd1a17xt8bd4x4vg3u75fdg2	SYSTEM	5,1,Service Pack 2	2.6
4	EW001	szwdcgyk1ab2jzic23lmp02stne7rp0	jake	5,1,Service Pack 2	2.6
5	LAB01	fuw6swi926kxpw13wvims1hvxizwn5bb	paul	5,1,Service Pack 2	2.6
6	LAB02	i8sfveol19x1pwvyzvzsmy0b970lbfsj	mike	5,1,Service Pack 2	2.6
7	LAB03	grj2ke3uzsekagi2aj0l0er1r8fxvb0p	al	5,1,Service Pack 2	2.6
8	LAB04	cwfkzk1hd98qv9241bawp6tek3acghr7	jim	5,1,Service Pack 2	2.6
9	LAB05	si64mh41ubuw5rar60tiyew93y5zotrr	bob	5,1,Service Pack 2	2.6
10					
11					✓
H 4	► ► ► \ 2008071	8124602-0006/	<		
Read	ły				

## **Alert Zones**

The **Alert Zones** tab allows you to set up and manage zones of computers. With the advent of the **Alert Zones** feature, you can segment alert message delivery to one or multiple zones.

Computers can be members of any number of zones.

To create a zone, follow these steps:

- 1. In the **Zone** text field, type a name for your new zone.
- 2. In the **Description** field, type a description for your zone.
- 3. Click the + icon to add the zone.
- 4. From the right column, select computers that you want to be members of this zone.
- 5. Click the **Add** button to add them to the new zone.
- 6. Click **Save** to save your new zone to the BEAMS Server.

Blaser Emergency Alert Messaging Syst Broadcast Message   Balloon Message   Zone New Zone Description New Zone Description	em Silent Testing Alert Z	Zones About	Save Cancel	2	X
Friendly Name	< Add >> Remove	Friendly Name TECH01 BBLASER SECRETARY03 LAB04 LAB07 TECH04 LAB07 LAB01 LAB05 LAB01 BBLASER OFFICE_BOSS TECH02 TECH05 SECRETARY01 TECH03 LAB06 LAB03 LAB06 LAB03 LAB10 LAB08 OFFICE_15202 SECRETARY02	E		
Ready.					

You can select more than one computer at the same time by holding the **Ctrl** key while selecting them in the list.

Zone New Zone		<u> </u>	Cancel	
Friendly Name	<< Add >> Remove	Friendy Name           TEC-H0           BBLASER           SCORETARY03           LAB04           LAB05           LAB10           LAB10           LAB11           LAB15           CR07           TECH04           LAB10           LAB11           LAB15           TECH02           TECH03           TECH03           LAB11           LAB10           LAB13           LAB10           LAB10           LAB10           LAB10           LAB10           LAB11		

Clicking the **Add** button adds the selected computers.

_	Car
-	
	Friendly Name
	TECH01 BBLASER SECRETARY03
<<	LAB04 LAB07
Add	TECH04 LAB10 LAB05
>>	LAB01
Remove	OFFICE_BOSS TECH05 SECRETARY01 TECH03 LAB10 LAB10 LAB10 OFFICE_15202 SECRETARY02
	<< Add >> Remove

Clicking the – button will delete the currently selected zone. When you click the – button, you are then prompted for confirmation.

ontirm 2	Lone Remova			
1	Are you su	ire you want to peri	manently remove the cu	rrent zone?
			Yes	No

Clicking **Yes** will permanently delete the zone.

## **Subnet Zones**

The **Subnet Zones** tab allows you to set up and manage zones of computers by IP Address and Network Mask. The functionality of adding, saving, and deleting **Subnet Zones** is the same as the previous section **Alert Zones**.

#### Network

Specify the network address of the subnet you want to create a zone for.

#### Netmask

Specify the network mask of the subnet you want to create a zone for.

adcast Messa	age   Balloon Message   Silent Testing	Alert Zones Subnet Zones Canned	Messages   Client Management   About
Zone Flo	por 1	• + -	Save
Network	10.0.0.0		Cancel
Netmask	255 . 0 . 0 . 0		
Description	1st Floor of Main Building		

# **Sending Alerts**

Anytime the BEAMS Manager sends an alert (Broadcast, Balloon or Silent Test), a confirmation dialog will display before the message is relayed to the BEAMS Server.

Please Confirm	
Send message?	
Yes	No

If you realize an error or decide you did not want to send a broadcast message, click **No** to cancel sending the message.

roadcast (	Cancelled.
Broadcas	t Cancelled.

If you click **Yes** the broadcast message is sent to all clients via the BEAMS Server and the following message is displayed:

EAMS Manager	
Emergency Ale	ert Message Sent!
	OK

After broadcasting is complete, check the status bar to see how many clients received the message:

Broadcasting complete. 235 bytes sent to 81 clients.

# Summary

The goal of **Blaser Emergency Alert Messaging System** is to enable an organization with a means of notifying individuals in their organizations instantly when it becomes necessary. Companies, schools, hospitals, municipalities and many others need a way to alert people of unfolding situations immediately...BEAMS has the ability to get the message out in a timely fashion and in a way which doesn't rely on people checking for messages, like e-mail.

We encourage you to download a fully-functioning demo of the **Blaser Emergency Alert Messaging System** and try it for yourself. If you have suggestions that would improve the product, or requirements that you need in the product that would make you purchase it, let us know!

Beau Blaser Software is committed to making software that is easy to install, configure and use; and software that is useful! All of our products are coded in C++ using documented standards. Our code is clean (not messy) and we pride ourselves on robust and efficient products that are fast and easy to setup and use.

### References

Blaser Emergency Alert Messaging System program information and available details can be found at:

http://www.blaser.us/software/beams/

For feedback and information, send e-mail to:

<u>contact@blaser.us</u>

### A few words from Beau...

I hope you like the Blaser Emergency Alert Messaging System. I started creating it around the year 2000 as an instant messaging system. After the events of September 11, 2001, the focus of the application changed. It has evolved over the past few years to be the premiere emergency alert messaging system for Windows computer and networks.

While my little company is small and new, it is my goal is to develop and deliver software that is of the highest quality (and at least slightly innovative). Feedback, criticism, advice and comments are all things that I want! The only way for the products to improve and become more useful is for people to let me know if I'm achieving my goal. I invite you to send me an e-mail and let me know what you think.

Sincerely,

Beau